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VISION & MISSION

— OUR VISION

To be the premier knowledge driven institution providing advisory
and syndication services to all links in the infrastructure value
chain for a New India”

OUR MISSION
To provide services for creditable
identification, development, implementation

and monitoring of infrastructure projects
required across the country ensuring adoption
of the best practices and optimum utilization
of financial and other resources




ITFCL PROJECTS LIMITED (IPL) AT A GLANCE

IPL is a dedicated project advisory company adding value in the areas of project

appraisal, syndication, transaction advisory, and infrastructure consultancy services.

Mandate:

o  To assist, advise and promote infrastructure development by way of advisory and

development management services to infrastructure projects.

o« To act as a nodal agency for Identification, appraisal, development and
establishment of infrastructure projects and facilities in India or outside India
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Wholly owned subsidiary of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited (IIFCL)

Realizing the importance of identifying and conceptualizing good bankable infrastructure projects and attracting
private capital, IIFCL, in Feb 2012, established IPL, as completely owned subsidiary, to leverage its domain
expertise for providing project advisory services including project appraisal and syndication services.

Acting as a dedicated Financial & Infrastructure Advisory Company, IPL extends advisory support to the
Central / State/ Local Governments & its bodies, Project Developers and Investors on the needs and priorities of
infrastructure, impediments, policy, financing issues.
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OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the members of IIFCL Projects Limited will
be held on Friday, 30" September 2022, at 11:00 A.M. at Board Room, 5" Floor, Plate - A, NBCC Tower, Block
- 2, Kidwai Nagar (East), New Delhi, 110023, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and
Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date together with the reports of the
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 2021-22 were appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India (C&AG of India) vide letter dated August 19, 2021. The Board of Directors in
meeting held on October 8, 2021, approved the appointment of Chander Parkash & Co., Chartered
Accountants as Statutory Auditor and approved their remuneration at Rs. 25,000 plus applicable
taxes. The members are requested to consider the resolution to ratify the remuneration of Statutory
Auditors fixed for carrying out Statutory Audit of IPL for the Financial Year 2021-22.

Pursuant to section 139(5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Auditors of a Government Company are to
be appointed or re-appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) and in terms
of section 142(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, their remuneration has to be fixed by the Company in
Annual General Meeting.

The C&AG vide its letter dated August 31, 2022 appointed Chander Parkash & Co., Chartered
Accountant as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23. The members are
requested to approve the appointment of Chander Parkash & Co, Chartered Accountants as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 and authorize the Board of Directors to fix an
appropriate remuneration of Auditors as may be deemed fit by the Board.

By order of the Board

Place: New Delhi
Date: 09.09.2022 Palash Srivastava

Director & Deputy CEO
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE AMEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT
APPOINTING A PROXY, SHOULD HOWEVER BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY, NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

2. Members/proxies should bring duly filled Attendance Slips sent herewith to attend the meeting.

3. The Register of Directors Shareholding, maintained under section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013
will be available for inspection by the members at the meeting.

4, The Register of Contracts, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and alldocuments
as mentioned in the resolutions and or explanatory statement will be available for inspection by the
members at the registered office of the Company.

5. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify the change in their address to the
Company. Members should quote their folio numbers in the correspondence.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Registered Folio/DP ID:

Name and address of the Shareholder:
Name of Joint holder(s)

No. of Shares:

I/we hereby record my/our presence at the 10" Annual General of IIFCL Projects Limited to be held on
Friday, 30" September 2022, at 11:00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at Board Room, 5th
Floor, Plate - A, NBCC Tower, Block - 2, Kidwai Nagar (East), New Delhi,110023.

Signature of the Shareholder(s)

Signature of Proxy holder

Note: Shareholders attending meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip
and hand it over at the entrance of meeting hall.
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\\ DIRECTOR’S REPORT \\

BOARD’S REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

THE MEMBERS OF IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED

Your directors have great pleasure to present the 10th (Tenth) Annual Report on performance of your
Company for the financial year ended March 31st, 2022 along with the Audited Financial Statements, Report
of the Auditors and the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) thereon.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIALS, OPERATIONS & STATE OF AFFAIRS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulas | AsatMarch31,2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Total Revenue 1316.29 1101.18
Total Expenses 801.86 769.65
Profit Before Tax 514.43 331.53
Tax Expense 140.84 85.89
Profit For The Period* 375.48 231.71

*After adjustment of Other Comprehensive Income as per IND-AS

SHARE CAPITAL

The entire paid up share capital of the Company amounting to Rs.475 Lacs continues to be held by IIFCL
and its nominees.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

This year, IIFCL Projects Limited (IPL) completes a decade of its contribution in infrastructure development
as a dedicated Project and Financial Advisory Company. Your Company, through its laid down strategy and
enduring execution has made its space in the advisory and consultancy segment amongst Central and State
Governments by delivering services in various domains like Programme Management as well as structuring
and project implementation services for various Central/State authorities.

IPL has now established prominent regional presence in the country and has become a ‘self-sustaining’
organization. The successful execution and stability of advisory programmes with the various state authorities
has been influential and a major contributor to the sustainable performance of the Company and has added
visibility and strength to the core financing portfolio of the IIFCL Group. IPL continues to successfully source
as well as execute its consultancy and advisory assignments.

Your Company, for efficient execution of its mandates and to expand the outreach and positioning of the
IIFCL Group in the country specially with state clients/authorities has posted its officers (permanent and/
or consultants/retainers) in the states of New Delhi, Meghalaya, Tamil Nadu and Manipur. With emerging
affiliations across various state authorities, IPL is working towards expanding this network in the other major
states of Karnataka, Andhra Pradesh, Maharashtra and other Northeastern states.

State Programmes

While your Company continues to execute its existing mandates with Tamil Nadu Infrastructure Development
Board (TNIDB), Meghalaya Infrastructure Development Finance Corporation (MIDFC) and Meghalayan Age
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Limited (MAL), it is poised to expand its footprints to other states/state authorities. During FY 2021-22, your
Company was appointed as principal consultant to Manipur State Planning Authority (MSPA) for providing
advisory services in infrastructure and allied sectors. IPL also bagged two new retainership programmes
from the state of Meghalaya for increasing potential investment in the state and to promote eco-sensitive
development in the state.

Under its ongoing mandate with Meghalaya Infrastructure Development Finance Corporation (MIDFC) for providing
Project Development Assistance (PDA) to develop urban and other infrastructure projects in the state, IPL
continues to undertake extensive procurement related activities for integrated development of projects like
Heliports, Tourism, Power Generation, Ropeways as well as Inland Waterways. Further, IPL is exclusively
working with the Power Department of the state for rationalization of financing cost of its generating assets
as well as for providing technical inputs to accelerate the commissioning of upcoming 22.5 MW Ganol Hydro
Project through close monitoring of the critical activities.

As an expansion to this programme, your Company is also working closely with the Meghalaya State Investment
Promotion Board (MSIPB) as its Project Management Unit (PMU), which was reconstituted on O7th July 2021
by the State government to identify the infrastructural gaps in the State and to facilitate all relevant matters
to fast-track realization of investment opportunities and promote Meghalaya as an investment destination.
The role of IPL entails working in close coordination with and on behalf of various State departments,
agencies and multiple stakeholders like Central Government Ministries and Departments, Domestic Lending
Institutions, Multilaterals, PSUs, etc. in the areas of resource mobilization, strengthening of the regulatory
and institutional framework, capacity building and investment promotion through tie-ups amongst others.

Under its other programme with Meghalayan Age Limited (MAL), where IPL is working in the capacity of Principal
Consultant for providing Project advisory and Institutional Support to assist the Company in hastening the
pace of tourism infrastructure development in the State, IPL continues to provide procurement related
activities to facilitate development of projects in the sector of Ropeways, Adventure Tourism and project
monitoring works under the Meghalaya Ecotourism Infrastructure Development Project (MEIDP).

During current year, IPL also entered into a MoU with Eco Development Society, Government of Meghalaya on
23rd February 2022 to take up works and activities in the field of Environment, Conservation, Climate
Change etc. under the chairmanship of Minister (Forest and Environment)/ Government of Meghalaya.
IPL has been appointed as Principal Consultant for providing Project advisory and Institutional Support to
assist the SOCIETY in increasing contribution of various international and local stakeholders to conserve the
unique ecological setting of the state of Meghalaya through concerted/coordinated Environment and Forest
Actions.

The Consultancy Service Agreement with Tamil Nadu Infrastructure Development Board (TNIDB) has been
extended by a year with effect from O7th January 2022. Under the mandate, IPL continues to support
TNIDB for shaping policy issues, preparation of concept notes, project appraisal, appraisal of bid documents
for PPP projects, capacity building of the public sector officials and for implementation of Chennai City
Partnership Program. Your Company is working towards leveraging the experience gained through working
on this mandate and expansion of its existing mandates in Tamil Nadu.

As stated above, IPL expanded its footprints to yet another state i.e. Manipur through its new assignment
with Manipur State Planning Authority (MSPA) in the capacity of Principal Consultant for development of
infrastructure projects in the State. During the year, IPL has been working on various activities with the State
authorities which included Initiation of mapping and envisioning the development landscape, assistance in
formulating policies, providing procurement support, resource mobilization and providing support in capacity
building of officials of State Government of Manipur.

Transaction Advisory/Consultancy services

The advisory mandates of your Company range from Transaction, Financial and Project structuring advisory
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with respect to Infrastructure Project Development/Implementation, Procurement, Financial Planning and
Monitoring, Business Planning/ Incorporation, Institutional Support, Project Monitoring for Multilateral
Bank Programmes, Environment and Social Governance Advisory etc. to various Government Companies/
Authorities.

During Financial Year 2021-22, the Union Cabinet, chaired by Hon’ble Prime Minister, approved the transfer
of 10 in-orbit Communication Satellites from Department of Space to New Space India Limited (NSIL) in a
move that is widely expected to ensure adequate commercial exploitation of these satellites. IPL bagged the
prestigious assignment for providing its Transaction Advisory services for transfer of these satellites from
Department of Space to NSIL. IPL is currently in the process of execution of this mandate which broadly
includes due diligence, review of valuation, contract review and documentation.

Further, IPL has, over these years, developed prolonged relationship through repeat mandates from MDBs like
Deutsche Gesellschaft fiir Internationale Zusammenarbeit (GIZ). IPL had earlier supported the Strategic Alliance
between Global Infrastructure Basel Foundation (GIB) and GIZ to build a business case for “Sustainability
Standards”, for assessing vulnerability of infrastructure projects to climate change and developed a detailed
business case report covering the present scenario of climate change, its impact on infrastructure and
various ESG aspects. This year, IPL successfully completed its mandate from ‘Sustainability Infrastructure
Alliance’ (SIA), a global major in the area of ‘Sustainability in Infrastructure’, on promoting ‘SuRe®’ in India
which are globally applicable ‘Sustainability Standards’ developed by SIA through its associate partners.

Further, IPL has also been appointed as Project Finance Expert by South Pole, an implementation partner
with Swiss Agency for Development and Co-operation (SDC), under the Capacity Building Project on Low Carbon
and Climate Resilient City Development in India (CapaCITIES). The SDC is undertaking the program titled
CapaCITIES Implementation (India) designed to focus on select cities in India to develop sustainable,
resilient and climate sensitive infrastructure. It aims to strengthen the capacities of Indian cities, to identify,
plan and implement measures for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and for enhancing resilience to
climate change in an integrated manner. This programme is part of SDC’s Global Programme on Climate
Change (GPCC), which actively engages in multilateral climate change policy processes, supports innovative
climate change and mitigation projects in targeted partner countries and facilitates the generation and
dissemination of knowledge. IPL has successfully executed two mandates earlier and are currently executing
the third mandate wherein IPL is preparing a report to assess the bankability of a Bio-CNG Plant in the city
of Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu.

Financial Advisory

IPL continues to provide its services to India Infrastructure Finance Company (UK) Ltd (IIFC (UK)) under ongoing
Service Agreement. IPL has been entrusted as the agency for undertaking end to end secondary project
appraisal and monitoring services by IIFC(UK) Limited incorporated with the Registrar of Companies of
England and Wales at London to lend to Indian companies implementing infrastructure projects in India to
co-finance their External Commercial Borrowings for such projects. Continuing to solely assist IIFC(UK) in
its activities for more than seven years, IPL at present manages a consolidated portfolio of infrastructure
projects under harmonised list of more than USD 2 Billion including assets refinanced as well as those
undergoing Resolution under IBC with NCLAT.

The services provided have wide scope and covers secondary project financial appraisal, preparation of draft
board memoranda, processing disbursement and modification requests and overall monitoring of projects
on behalf of IIFC (UK). Besides above, IPL has also been assisting IIFC (UK) with regard to coordination with
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), various Ministries and Departments of the Government of India in respect
of issuance of Government of India Guaranteed bonds by IIFC (UK) and subscription of same by RBI.

Your Company further continues to explore business prospects in the area of financial structuring for State/
Central government(s) projects and to network with numerous private developers in the infrastructure
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space. IPL has also been exploring funding opportunities in upcoming and niche segments such as City
Gas Distribution, Rolling Stock in Railways, Electric Vehicles, Waste to energy etc. Taking into account, the
Government’s focus on monetising assets, IPL is also exploring with various states to put in place Asset
Monetisation frameworks for their existing assets. IPL is further engaged with various clients like West
Bengal Transco, Acme and Shapoorji Pallonji for bagging funding and syndication opportunities.

IND AS STANDARDS

Your Company had adopted IND AS with effect from 1st April, 2018 pursuant to notification dated February
15, 2015 under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “The Act”) issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.
Your Company has approved IND AS Financials for the year ended March 31, 2022 along with comparable
financials for the year ended March 31, 2021.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company truly believes in enabling Customer and Stakeholder satisfaction and strive towards
excellence in all its business endeavors. IPL presently comprises a lean set up with 12 officers supported
by 18 consultants, and 5 research associates, well qualified to undertake project consultancy and financial
advisory services assignments.

The endeavors of human resource development include structuring the organization to appropriately address
the needs of the various assignments, emphasizing on identification of and nurturing leadership planning
for managing the business in perpetuity. Towards organization building, your company has been continually
engaged in training and development of its officers, upgrading skills set with a view to undertake new areas
of business.

In order to develop human resources of the Company, various initiative was taken during the year which
includes imparting training/ workshops in the areas of Management Development, Risk Management,
new technologies etc. at various renowned institutions. Participation in various conferences, seminars and
meetings for networking as well as skill upgradation was also undertaken.

In order to ensure timely execution of the mandates in the various diversified areas of infrastructure sector,
the plans of the company have been to engage professional expertise on a contractual basis. Applying
this principle, your Company is working with consultants with specific domain expertise to strengthen its
human resource base for successful execution of the mandates received from various state governments.
These efforts are directed towards building a continues learning environment in the organization aimed at
facilitating the growth and personal achievement of all employees.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED

The infrastructure sector in India was also impacted by the slowdown in the economic and business
environment. However, the sector demonstrated relative resilience during the Covid-19 pandemic and
several indicators point towards recovery back to pre-covid levels. The management of your Company took
all possible measures to ensure continuity of requisite services to all its clients during this phase at the same
time implementing all effective measures to contain the spread of the virus amongst all its stakeholders by
following all applicable guidelines issued by authorities from time to time.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

M/s. Chander Parkash & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company
for the Financial Year 2021-22 by the Office of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.
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The audited statement of accounts along with the report of Auditors is appended with comments of
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. The statement of accounts and notes to accounts are
self-explanatory and needs no comments.

M/s. Chander Parkash & Co., Chartered Accountants, have further been appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 by the Office of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any Deposits during the year; therefore, no disclosure is required.

DIVIDEND

The company has not purposed any dividend for the financial year 2021-22.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Your Company being a Government Company is not required to give particulars of employees in terms of
provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 the Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel Rules), 2014.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year, your Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standard issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSl) to the extent applicable.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of section 92 (3) read with section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules framed thereunder, the Annual Return, for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 is available
on the website of the Company i.e. www.iifclprojects.com and can be accessed through the web link -
https://www.iifclprojects.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/Annual-Return-2022.pdf

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the financial year ending March 31, 2022, the following meetings of the Board and Committees of
the Board were conducted and the details of meetings attended by Directors.

DETAILS OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED

Name of Directors June 10, October 08, November 24,
2021 2021 2021
Yes Yes Yes Yes

Padmanabhan Raja Jaishankar

Pawan K Kumar No Yes Yes Yes
Palash Srivastava Yes Yes Yes Yes
Gaurav Kumar Yes Yes Yes Yes
Subhendu Moitra NA NA Yes Yes

. Mr. Subhendu Moitra was appointed as Nominee Directors of the Company w.e.f. 24th November,
2021.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors state that:

1. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the applicable
Indian accounting standards read with the requirements set out under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

2. the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and of the profit
of the Company for that period;

3. the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. the directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 on a ‘going
concern’ basis;

5. the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

6. the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, there are following appointment and resignation of
Directors in the Company.

Mr. Subhendu Moitra was appointed as Nominee Directors of the Company w.e.f. 24th November, 2021

The provisions relating to directors liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting is not applicable
to the Company as the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of India Infrastructure Finance Company
Limited, a Government Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS AS PER SECTION 186

The Company has not given loans or guarantees for loans taken by others from Banks and financial
institutions.

The Company has not made any investment as per section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES AS PER
SECTION 188

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis.
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The details are as hereunder:

Name(s) of related India Infrastructure Finance Company Shri Palash
party Limited Srivastava

Nature of contracts/ Rent, Pantry, Reimbursement  Advisory Advisory Remuneration
arrangements/ Parking of Salaries Service  Service Fee and
transactions & Office of Deputed Fee reimbursements
Maintenance Employee
(Receivable)
Amount of the Rs. 91.52 Rs. 134.03 Lacs Rs.0.95 Rs.584.09 Lacs Rs. 54.00 Lacs
transaction Lacs Lacs

Your Directors also draw attention of the members to Note 28.4 to the financial statement which set out
related party disclosure.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as
follows:
Conservation of energy and Technology absorption:

The Company is not required to disclose particulars relating to conversation of energy and technology
absorption as your company does not undertake manufacturing activity. However, Company has taken
adequate measures to conserve energy consumption in the office premises.

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

During the year under review, the Company has Rs. 583.94 Lacs foreign exchange earnings.

The foreign currency outgo during the year under review was NIL.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATOR OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulator or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s operations in future.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Your company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to closing of books of accounts
and financial statements. During the year under review, such controls were reviewed and tested through a
study conducted by our statutory auditor and the observations were incorporated as part of the Independent
Auditor’s Report placed before the Board.

There were no reportable material weakness in the design or operations and the report stated that internal
financial controls were operating effectively as at 31st March 2022.
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OFFICIAL LANGUAGE

Your Company ensures compliance of Official Language Act, 1963 and Official Language Rules, 1976 and
other guidelines issued every year by the Department of Official Language, Ministry of Home Affairs to
promote the use of Official Language Hindi in the office

The third sub - committee of the committee of Parliament on official language inspected your company IIFCL
Projects Limited. The Committee consisted of eminent Members of Parliament (M.P’s) both from Lok Sabha
as well as Rajya Sabha. IPL has successfully completed the inspection and registered in Narakas.

GENERAL

Your Directors further state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of various items, which are
only applicable to listed companies or where there were no transactions during the year under review.

Further, your Directors state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors of your Company would like to place on record their sincere appreciation and
gratitude Government of India and particularly IIFCL for providing their continued support and cooperation
in the growth and establishment of the Company. The Board is also thankful to the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India and the Auditors of the Company for their valuable guidance and advice.

Your Directors place on record their sincere gratitude to the Board of the Company whose guidance and
valuable direction will enable it to tread the path towards the objective.

Your Directors express their deep appreciation for the hard work and dedicated efforts putin by the employees
at all levels and look forward to their continued contribution in achieving the mission and objective of the
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
PR Jaishankar
Director and Chairman
DIN - 06711526
Place: New Delhi

Date: 09.09.2022
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\\ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT \\

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED, New Delhi
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, statement of Profit and Loss,
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (herein after referred to as Ind AS
Financial statements)

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Principles generally accepted in
India, including the Ind AS of the financial position of the company as at March 31, 2022 and, its financial
performance, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

There was no matter to be emphasized.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of its report (herein
after called as “Board Report)which comprises various information included in the Board Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report required under section 134(3) of the Companies
Act 2013 but does not include the Ind AS financial statement and our auditor’s report thereon.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performanceand cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and operating
effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

As required by section 143(5) of the Act, Directions Indicating the areas to be examined during the
course of audit, issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, are annexed in “Annexure B”.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and, the statement of
changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Being a Government Company, the provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act 2013, are
not applicable pursuant to the notification No. G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5thJuly, 2015 issued by Central
Government of India.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For CHANDER PARKASH & CO
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.: 010770N)

Sd/-

DISHANT KHATTER
Partner

(Membership No.:540382)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25.05.2022
UDIN: 22540382AKWBAI8396
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With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the
Company on the Ind AS financial statements for the year endedMarch 31,2022, we report the following;:

Comment Auditor’s Opinion on Following Matter Auditor’'s Remark
Required on

Property,
Plant and
Equipment

(e) whether

) Whether the company is maintaining
proper records showing  full
particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property,
Plant and Equipment?

b) Whether these Property, Plant and

Equipment have been physically
verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; whether any
material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification and if so, whether
the same have been properly dealt
with in the books of accounts?

¢) Whether the title deeds of immovable

properties are held in the name of the
company? If not, provide the details
thereof.

(d) whether the company has
revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both
during the year and, if so, whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation
by a Registered Valuer; specify the
amount of change, if change is 10%
or more in the aggregate of the
net carrying value of each class of
Property, Plant and Equipment or
intangible assets?

any proceedings have
been initiated or are pending
against the company for holding
any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder, if so, whether the
company has appropriately disclosed
the details in its financial statements?

The company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and

situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

Some of theProperty, Plant and
Equipment have been physically

verified by the management during
the year with a regular programme
of verification, which in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and nature of its
business. No material discrepancies
between the books records and the
physical Property, Plant and Equipment
have been noticed.

The title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the company.

The Company has not revalued
its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the
year.

There are no proceedings initiated
or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under
the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.
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Comment Auditor’s Opinion on Following Matter Auditor’'s Remark
Required on

(iii)

(iv)

Inventory (a) whether physical verification of
inventory has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the management
and whether, in the opinion of the
auditor, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is
appropriate; whether any discrepancies
of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed and if so,
whether they have been properly dealt
with in the books of account?

(b) whether during any point of time of the
year, the company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks
or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; whether the
quarterly returns or statements filed by
the company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company, if not,
give details?

Loan given by Whether during the year the company

Company has made investments in, provided any
guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties?

Loans and In  respect of loans, investments,

investments guarantees, and security whether

by the provisions of section 185 and 186 of
company the Companies Act, 2013 have been

complied with. If not, provide the details
thereof.

The nature of business of the company
is in a service sector. Accordingly, it
does not hold any physical inventory
during the year. Thus, this paragraph
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not been sanctioned
any working capital limits in excess
of five crore rupees in aggregate
from banks and financial institutions
on the basis of security of current
assets at any point of time of the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The company has not made investments
in, provided any guarantee or security
or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties.
Therefore, clause (iii)(a),(b), (c), (d), (e)
and (f) are not applicable.

In our opinion, the company has not
entered into anysuch transaction for
giving loans, investments, guarantees,
and security that the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 shall apply. Thus, the clause
isn’t applicable.
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Comment Auditor’s Opinion on Following Matter Auditor’s Remark
Required on

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Deposits

Cost
Accounting
Records

Statutory
Compliance

In respect of deposits accepted by the
company or amounts which are deemed
to be deposits, whether the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of sections 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, where applicable, have been
complied with, if not, the nature of such
contraventions be stated; if an order has
been passed by Company Law Board
or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any court or any
other tribunal, whether the same has
been complied with or not?

Whether maintenance of cost records
has been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
and whether such accounts and records
have been so made and maintained?

a) Whether the company is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees'
state insurance, income tax, sales-tax,
service tax, Goods and Service Tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other statutory dues
to the appropriate authorities and if not,
the extent of the arrears of outstanding
statutory dues as on the last day of the
financial year concerned for a period of
more than six months from the date they
became payable, shall be indicated?

b) Where dues of income tax or sales
tax or service tax or duty of customs or
duty of excise or value added tax have
not been deposited on account of any
dispute, then the amounts involved and
the forum where dispute is pending shall
be mentioned.

The Company has not accepted
any deposits or amounts which are
deemed to be deposits from the public.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to
maintain cost records pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government
for the maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

According  to information and
explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the
books of account, and records, the
Company has been generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax,
Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
added Tax, Cess and any other statutory
dues with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the
above were in arrears as at March 31,
2022 for a period of more than six
months from the date on when they
become payable.

According to the information and
explanation given to us, there are no
dues of income tax, sales tax, service
tax, Goods and Service Tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added
tax outstanding on account of any

dispute.
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Comment Auditor’s Opinion on Following Matter Auditor’s Remark
Required on

(viii)

(ix)

Transactions
not recorded

Repayment of
Loan

whether any transactions not recorded
in the books of account have been
surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961), if so, whether the previously
unrecorded income has been properly
recorded in the books of account during
the year?

(a) whether the company has defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender, if yes, the period and the
amount of default?

(b) whether the company is a declared
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender?

(c) whether term loans were applied for
the purpose for which the loans were
obtained; if not, the amount of loan so
diverted and the purpose for which it is
used may be reported?

(d) whether funds raised on short term
basis have been utilised for long term
purposes, if yes, the nature and amount
to be indicated?

(e) whether the company has taken
any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures, if so, details thereof with nature
of such transactions and the amount in
each case?

(f) whether the company has raised
loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies, if so,
give details thereof and also report if the
company has defaulted in repayment of
such loans raised?

The Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year.

The company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender.

The Company has not been declared
a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or
government authority.

The Company has not taken any term
loans from any lender. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

No funds raised on short-term basis
have been used for long-term purposes
by the Company.

The company does not hold any
investment in any subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The company does not hold any
investment in any subsidiaries,
associates, or joint ventures.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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Comment
Required on

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

Utilisation

of IPO and
further
Public Offer
and Private
Placement of
Preferential
Issues

Fraud
Reporting

Nidhi
Company -
Compliance
with Deposits

Auditor’s Opinion on Following Matter

a) whether moneys raised by way of
initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the
year were applied for the purposes for
which those are raised, if not, the details
together with delays or default and
subsequent rectification, if any, as may
be applicable, be reported?

(b) whether the company has made
any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year and if so,
whether the requirements of section
42 and section 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have been complied with and
the funds raised have been used for
the purposes for which the funds were
raised, if not, provide details in respect
of amount involved and nature of non-
compliance

(a) Whether any fraud by the company
or any fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year? If yes, the
nature and the amount involved is to be
indicated;

(b) whether any report under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government?

(c) whether the auditor has considered
whistle-blower complaints, if any,
received during the year by the company?
Whetherthe Nidhi Company has complied
with the Net Owned Funds to Deposits in
the ratio of 1:20 to meet out the liability
and whether the Nidhi Company is
maintaining ten per cent unencumbered
term deposits as specified in the Nidhi
Rules, 2014 to meet out the liability.

whether there has been any default
in payment of interest on deposits or
repayment thereof for any period and if
so, the details thereof ?

Annual Report 2021-22

Auditor’'s Remark

The company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer {including debt

instruments).Accordingly, clause 3(x)
(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order
is not applicableto the Company.

Based on our audit procedures and
the information and explanation made
available to us no such fraud noticed or
reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

No whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

As per information and records
available with us the company is not
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.
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Comment Auditor’s Opinion on Following Matter Auditor’s Remark
Required on

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Related Party
Transactions

Internal Audit

Non-Cash
Transactions

Registration
from RBI

Whether all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements etc., as required by the
applicable accounting standards?

(a) whether the company has an internal
audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business?

(b) whether the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were
considered by the statutory auditor.
Whether the company has entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him and if
so, whether the provisions of section
192 of Companies Act, 2013 have been
complied with?

(a) whether the company is required to
be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and if
so, whether the registration has been
obtained?

(b) whether the company has conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without a valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 19347?

(c) whether the company is a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined
in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India, if so, whether it continues
to fulfil the criteria of a CIC, and in
case the company is an exempted or
unregistered CIC, whether it continues to
fulfil such criteria?

Yes, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements etc., as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion, the Company has an
internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

Yes, thereports of the Internal Auditor
of the Company were considered by the
statutory auditor.

Based upon the audit procedures
performed and the information and
explanations given by the management,
the company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3
(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented
upon.

The company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
accordingly, the provisions of clause 3
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not conducted non-
banking financial or housing finance
activities during the year. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of
the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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Comment
Required on

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

Cash Losses

Resignation
of Statutory
Auditors

Financial
Ratios

Auditor’s Opinion on Following Matter

(d) whether the Group has more than one
CIC as part of the Group, if yes, indicate
the number of CICs which are part of the
Group?

whether the company has incurred cash
losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year, if
so, state the amount of cash losses?

whether there has been any resignation
of the statutory auditors during the year,
if so, whether the auditor has taken into
consideration the issues, objections
or concerns raised by the outgoing
auditors?

On the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements,
the auditor’'s knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans,
whether the auditor is of the opinion that
no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that company is
capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date?
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Auditor’s Remark

According to the information and
explanations provided to us the Group
(as per the provisions of the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any
CIC.

The Company has not incurred any cash
losses in the financial year or in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the
statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly, the Clause (xviii) of the
order is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and
explanations given to us and on the
basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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Auditor’s Opinion on Following Matter
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Comment
Required on

Transfer of
Unspent
amount

(xx)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25.05.2022

(a) whether, in respect of other than
ongoing projects, the company has
transferred unspent amount to a
Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the
Companies Act within a period of six
months of the expiry of the financial
year in compliance with second proviso
to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
said Act?

(b) whether any amount remaining
unspent under sub-section (5) of section
135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to
any ongoing project, has been transferred
to special account in compliance with
the provision of sub-section (6) of section
135 of the said Act?

UDIN: 22540382AKWBAI8396

Auditor’'s Remark

According to the information and
explanations given to us, the provisions
of Section 135 of Companies Act 2013
are not applicable to the company.
Accordingly, the clause 3(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and
explanations given to us, the provisions
of Section 135 of Companies Act 2013
are not applicable to the company.
Accordingly, the clause 3(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

For CHANDER PARKASH & CO
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.: 010770N)

Sd/-

DISHANT KHATTER
Partner

(Membership No.:540382)
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‘ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Directions under section 143(5) of Companies Act 2013 and as per the directions issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India on financials of M/s IIFCL PROJECTS LTD for the financial year
ended 31st March 2022.

Impact on
Accounts and

Ind AS financial
statements

1. Whether the company has system in As per the information and explanation Nil
place to process all the accounting given to us, the company has a system
transactions through IT system? If in place to process all accounting
yes, the implications of processing transactions through IT system.
of accounting transactions outside IT
system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if
any, may be stated. -

Based on the audit procedures carried
out and as per the information and
explanations given to us no accounting
transactions have been processed/
carried out outside the IT system.
Accordingly, there are no implications
on the integrity of the accounts.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of As per the information and explanation Nil
an existing loan or cases of waiver/ given to us the company has not taken
write off of debts /loans/interest etc. any loans. Hence, not applicable.
made by a lender to the company due
to the company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated. Whether such cases
are properly accounted for? (In case,
lender is a Government Company, then
this direction is also applicable for
statutory auditor of lender Company)

3. Whether funds received/receivable As per the information and explanation Nil
for specific schemes from central/ given to us and based on the audit
state  agencies were properly procedures carried out, No such
accounted for/ utilized as per its term funds received/ receivable  for
and conditions? List the cases of specific schemes from central/ state
deviation agencies during the year. Hence, not

applicable.

For CHANDER PARKASH & CO
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.: 010770N)

Sd/-
DISHANT KHATTER
Partner
(Membership No.:540382)
Place: New Delhi
Date: 25.05.2022
UDIN: 22540382AKWBAI8396
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‘ANNEXURE—C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT \\

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED

(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For CHANDER PARKASH & CO
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.: 010770N)

Sd/-
DISHANT KHATTER
Partner
(Membership No.:540382)
Place: New Delhi
Date: 25.05.2022
UDIN: 22540382AKWBAI8396
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IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022

INR in Lakhs
2022 (Audited) 2021 (Audited)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and equipment 2 18.55 11.19
(b) Capital work-in-progress - -
(c) Other Intangible assets 3 0.57 0.38

(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments - -
(ii) Loans 41 35.07 32.11

(iii) Other financial assets 4.2 - -
(e) Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 82.70 63.55
(f) Other non-current assets 6 712 714

2 Current assets

(a) Financial Assets 7
(i) Trade Receivables 71 158.87 243.82
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7.2 368.14 140.56
(iif) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 73 1,918.22 1,677.32
(iv) Loans 74 Bib5 .82
(v) Other financial assets 1.5 52.37 62.26
(b) Other Current Assets 8 40.69 38.45
(c) Current Tax Asset (Net) 9 - -
Total Assets 2,685.85 2,280.09
1] EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 10 475.00 475.00
(b) Other Equity 11 1,818.05 1,379.79
2 Liabilities

Non Current Liabiliti
(a) Financial liablities

(i) Trade Payables - -

(i) Other Financial Liabilities - -
(b) Provisions 12 144.92 125.54
(c) Defered Tax Liabilities - -
(d) Other Non Current Liabilities - -

Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 13
(i) Trade payables - -
(i) Other financial liabilities 13.1 38.62 125.63
(b) Other current liabilities 14 58.00 48.50
(c) Provisions 12 143.72 110.43
(d)  Current Tax liability (Net) 9 7.54 15.20
Total Liabilities 2,685.85 2,280.09
Significant Accounting Policies 1

Accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of financial statements

As per Our Report on even Date Annexed
FOR CHANDER PARKASH & CO. For and on behalf of

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS the Board of Directors of IIFCL Projects Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Dishant Khatter Palash Srivastava P R Jaishankar
(Partner) (Director & Deputy CEO) (Chairman & Director)
M.No. 540382 (DIN : 02007911) (DIN : 6711526)

FRN 010770N
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 25.05.2022
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IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

INR in Lakhs
For year ended For year ended
31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021

I Revenue from operations 15 1,198.09 987.99
Il Other Income 16 118.20 113.19
Total Revenue (1+11) 1,316.29 1,101.18
Il Expenses
Manpower Benefit Expenses 17 624.39 638.59
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 7.64 8.80
Other Expenses 18 169.83 122.25
Total Expenses (lll) 801.86 769.65
IV  Profit before tax from continuing operations 514.43 331.53
V  Tax Expense:
- Current Tax 19 160.63 96.75
- Deferred Tax (19.79) (10.86)
Total Tax Expense 140.84 85.89
VI Profit for the Period from continuing operations 373.59 245.64

Discontinued Operations

Profit from discontinuing operations before tax - -

Tax expense of discontinuing operations - -

Profit from discontinuing operations - -
VIl  Profit for the Period 373.59 245.64

VIIl Other Comprehensive Income 20
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 2.53 (18.62)
Income tax effect relating to these items (0.64) 4.69
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 1.89 (13.93)
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VIII + 375.48 231.71

1X) (Comprehensive profit and other comprehensive

income for the period)
X Earnings per equity share for profit from Continuing 27

operations

Basic (in Rs.) 7.90 4.88

Diluted (in Rs.) 7.90 4.88
X1l Earnings per equity share for profit from discontinued

operations

Basic (in Rs.) - -

Diluted (in Rs.) - -
XIl Earnings per equity share for profit from Continuing

and discontinued operations

Basic (in Rs.) 7.90 4.88
Diluted (in Rs.) 7.90 4.88
Significant Accounting Policies 1

Accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of financial statements

As per Our Report on even Date Annexed
FOR CHANDER PARKASH & CO. For and on behalf of

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS the Board of Directors of IIFCL Projects Limited
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Dishant Khatter Palash Srivastava P R Jaishankar
(Partner) (Director & Deputy CEO) (Director)

M.No. 540382 (DIN : 02007911) (DIN : 6711526)
FRN 010770N

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 25.05.2022
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IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INR in Lakhs

Figures for the Figures for the
year ended year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

1 (a) Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Taxation 514.43 g&ils3

Add: Adjustment for non cash items :

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 7.64 8.80

Effect of Ind AS adjustment (2.22) (1.85)

Provisions/Tax Adjustments 6.15 58.61
526.01 397.10

Add: Adjustment for other items

Prior period expense 72.60 -

Other Comprehensive Income 2.53 (18.62)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 601.14 378.48

(b) Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustments for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets:

(Increase)/decrease in Current Assets 92.37 (82.39)
92.37 (82.39)

(c) Adjustments for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Liabilities:
Increase/(decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (44.23) 142.35
Utilization of Staff welfare fund (4.80) (3.98)
(49.03) 138.37
Cash Generated from Operations 644.48 434.46
Direct Taxes Paid/Received (160.63) (88.32)
Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 483.85 346.14

2 Cash from Investment Activities :-

Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets (14.65) (8.14)
(Purchase of)/ Sale of Investments/Proceeds of Bank Deposits (240.90) (256.32)
Loan assets (0.72) (10.71)
Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Investing Activities (B) (256.27) (275.17)

3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities :- - -
Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Financing Activities (C) - -

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 227.58 70.97
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the Year 140.56 69.59
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of year 368.14 140.56
Cash and Cash Equivalents
- Cash and Cheques in Hand 0.45 0.26
Balance with Scheduled Banks
- On Current Account 154.69 50.30
- On term Deposit Account 213.00 90.00
Notes :

The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the indirect method setout as per Ind-AS-7
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and notified u/s 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per Our Report on even Date Annexed
FOR CHANDER PARKASH & CO. For and on behalf of

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS the Board of Directors of IIFCL Projects Limited
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Dishant Khatter Palash Srivastava P R Jaishankar
(Partner) (Director & Deputy CEO) (Director)

M.No. 540382 (DIN : 02007911) (DIN : 6711526)

FRN 010770N
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 25.05.2022
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\\ IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED \\

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

A. Equity share capital INR in Lakhs
Balance at March 31, 2021 475.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2022 475.00

B. Other Equity INR in Lakhs

| Reserve & Surplus | Ius
Staff welfare Total
Reserve Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 1, 379.79 1,379.79
Prior period adjustments - 73.70 73.70

Tax Adjustments - (6.12) (6.12)
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 1,447.37 1,447.37
Profit for the year - 373.59 373.59
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of income tax) - 1.89 1.89
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 375.48 375.48
Amount transferred during the year 6.95 (6.95) -
Amount utilized during the period (4.80) - (4.80)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 2.15 1,815.91 1,818.05

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2021

A. Equity share capital INR in Lakhs
Balance at March 31, 2020 475.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at March 31, 2021 475.00

B. Other Equity INR in Lakhs

| Reserve & Surplus | Ius
Staff welfare Total
Reserve Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1, 147.32 1,147.32
Prior period adjustments - - -

Tax Adjustments 4.73 4.73
Restated balance at the beginning of the year - 1,152.06 1,152.06
Profit for the year - 245.64 245.64
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of income tax) - (13.93) (13.93)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 231.71 231.71
Amount transferred during the year 3.98 (3.98) -
Amount utilized during the period (3.98) = (3.98)
Balance at the end of the reporting period - 1,379.79 1,379.79

This Statement of Changes in Equity is as per our report of even date attached

As per Our Report on even Date Annexed
FOR CHANDER PARKASH & CO. For and on behalf of

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS the Board of Directors of IIFCL Projects Limited
Sd/- Sdy/- Sd/-

Dishant Khatter Palash Srivastava P R Jaishankar
(Partner) (Director & Deputy CEO) (Director)

M.No. 540382 (DIN : 02007911) (DIN : 6711526)

FRN 010770N
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 25.05.2022
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\\ IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED \\

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATTEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2022

Note 4 : Financial Assets Non-Current
4.1 Loans

 S.No. | Particulars | Asat 31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Unsecured, considered good
i) Loans to employees 35.07 32.11
Closing Balance 35.07 32.11

4.2 Other Financial Assets

S. No. | Particulars | Asat31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021
NIL

Closing Balance - -

Note 5 : Deferred Tax

mm As at 31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Deferred tax assets 82.70 67.79
ii) Deferred tax liabilities - (4.24)
Deferred tax assets 82.70 63.55

(net of deferred tax liabilities)

The balance comprises to temporary
differences attributable to:

Deferred tax assets

(a) Depreciation and amortisation 2.12 (4.24)
(b) Employee Benefits 80.58 67.79
Closing Balance 82.70 63.55

Note 6 : Other Non-Current Assets

| S.No. [Particulars [ Asat31stMarch 2022 | Asat 31st March 2021

i) Prepaid Staff Cost 7.12 7.14

Closing Balance 7.12 7.14

Note 7 : Financial Assets - Current

7.1 Trade Receivables

Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Unsecured, considered good
i) Receivables from related parties 6.38 145.94
i) Other Trade receivables 152.49 97.88

Closing Balance 158.87 243.82
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Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from

due date of payment

Less than 6 months

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 158.87 - 158.87
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - -

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - =
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - -
Total 158.87 - 158.87

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2021

Outstanding for following periods from
due date of payment
Less than 6 months

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 243.82 - 243.82
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - -

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - =
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - -
Total 243.82 - 243.82

7.2 Cash & Cash Equivalents

"SNo. |Particulars | Asat31stMarch2022 | As at 31stMarch 2021

i) Balances with Bank

(a) Current Account 154.69 50.30

(b) Fixed Deposits (Maturity less than 3

Months) 213.00 90.00
i) Cash in Hand 0.45 0.26

Closing Balance 368.14 140.56

7.3 Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash equivalent

| S.No. |Particulars | Asat31stMarch2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Other Bank Balances

i) Term Deposit in Schedule Bank (Maturity 1,918.22 1,677.32
more than 3 Months but less than 12
months)

i) Term Deposit in Schedule Bank (Maturity - -
more than 12 months)

Closing Balance 1,918.22 1,677.32

7.4 Loans

| S.No. |Particulars | Asat31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Unsecured, considered good
i) Loans to employees 3.55 3.32
Closing Balance 3.55 3.32
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| S.No. |Particulars | Asat31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Unsecured, considered good
i) Security Deposits
i) Interest Accrued but not due
Closing Balance

Note 8 : Other Current Assets

3.27 3.67
49.10 58.59
52.37 62.26

mm As at 31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Prepaid Expenses

i) Prepaid Staff Cost

iii) Input GST

iv) Advance to suppliers

V) Advance to Employees

Vi) Receivables from related parties

vii) Unreconciled balance due to erroneous

debit by IDBI bank
viii) Balance with Revenue Authorities

Closing Balance

Note 9 : Current Tax Asset (Net)

2.85 1.85
0.88 0.89
16.94 15.20
0.28 2.50
1.30 3.95
7.77
0.90 -
9.77 14.06
40.69 38.45

| S.No. |Particulars | Asat3istMarch2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Current Tax Asset
i) Advance Tax & TDS
Less: Direct Tax payable
Current Tax Liability
i) Direct tax Payable
Less : Advance Tax and TDS

Closing Balance

Note 10 : Equity Share Capital

160.63 96.75
(153.09) (81.55)
7.54 15.20

Particulars | Asat31st March2022| As at 31st March 2021

Authorised
1,00,00,000 Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
47,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 475.00 475.00
475.00 475.00
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Details of shareholder holding more than 5% in the company

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Name of shareholder - -
% holding % holding

Equity shares of INR each fully paid

1) India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd 41.50 100.00 41.50 100.00
2) Nominees on behalf of IIFCL 6.00 - 6.00 -
Total 47.50 47.50 -

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attaching to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each
shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in
proportion to their shareholding.

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital

Name of shareholder As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
| [No.ofshares| Amount | No.ofshares|  Amount |

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital 47.50 475.00 47.50 475.00
outstanding at the beginning of the year

Add: Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital 47.50 475.00 47.50 475.00
outstanding at the end of the year

Details of the Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 % change

Name of shareholder No.of No.of during the
% holdi % hol

1) India Infrastructure Finance 41.50 100% 41.50 100% -
Company Ltd

2) Nominees on behalf of IIFCL 6.00 6.00
Total 47.50 100% 47.50 100% -
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Note 11 : Other Equity
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mm As at 31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Staff Welfare Reserve
As per last Balance sheet
Add: Transfer from retained earning

Less: Amount utilized during the period

i) Retained Earnings
As per last Balance Sheet
(+) Profit after Tax
(+/-) Prior period item

(+/-) Prior period item- Depreciation Rever-
sal

(+/-) Tax Adjustments
(-) Transfer to Staff welfare fund

(+/-) Items of Other comprehensive income
recognised directly in retained earnings

(+/-) Remeasurements of defined benefits
plans, net of tax

Closing Balance

6.95
(4.80)
2.15

1,379.79
373.59
73.15
0.55

(6.12)
(6.95)

1.89

1,818.05

3.98
(3.98)

1,147.32
245.64

4.73
(3.98)

(13.93)

1,379.79

*Prior period adjustment includes Rs. 56,91,871 of reimbursement of Salaries of deputed employees pertaining to last

year claimed during the year.

*Prior period adjustment includes Rs. 16,23,827 as cumulative interest on FDR pertaining to last year received

during the year.

Note 12 : Provisions

mm As at 31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Provisions for Employee Benefits

i) Leave Encashment 51.91 44.54
ii) Gratuity 51.66 43.98
iii) Post Retirement Benefits 41.35 37.02
Non Current 144.92 125.54
iv) Leave Travel Concession 34.29 32.57
V) Wage Revision 109.43 77.86
Current 143.72 110.43
Closing Balance 288.64 235.97

Foot Note
12.1 For IIFCL Projects Employees

The disclosure required under Indian Accounting Standard-19 “Employee Benefit” in respect of defined

benefit plan is:
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RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCES OF THE PRESENT VALUE OF
THE DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION:

mm As at 31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

) Gratuity
Opening balance 43.98 32.06
Interest Cost 2.99 2.18
Current service cost 7.28 7.10
Benefit paid = =
Acturial Gain/Loss (2.59) 2.64
51.66 43.98
(1)} Leave Encashment
Opening balance 0.00 30.79
Interest Cost 3.02 2.09
Current service cost 7.19 7.21
Benefit paid (9.10) (7.03)
Acturial Gain/Loss 6.25 11.47
7.36 44.54
(i) Post retirement benefit
Opening balance 0.00 24.00
Interest Cost 2.51 1.63
Current service cost 5.86 6.12
Benefit paid = =
Acturial Gain/Loss (4.05) 5.26
4.32 37.02
(v) Leave Travel Concession
Opening balance 0.00 25.94
Interest Cost 2.21 1.76
Current service cost 4.82 5.63
Benefit paid (3.17) -
Acturial Gain/Loss (2.15) (0.76)
1.72 32.57

Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

| S.No. |Particulars | Asat31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Interest Cost, Current Service cost &
Acturial Gain / Loss

(1) Gratuity 7.68 11.92
(1) Leave Encashment 16.47 20.77
() Post retirement benefit 4.33 13.02
(Iv) LTC 4.88 6.64

33.36 52.34
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Amount Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income Account

| S.No. [Particulars | Asat31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

Acturial Gain / Loss on obligation

(1 Gratuity (2.59) 2.64
(1 Leave Encashment 6.25 11.47
(1) Post retirement benefit (4.05) 5.26
(Iv)  LTC (2.15) (0.76)

(2.54) 18.62

There are no Investment held against the provision for gratuity and leave encashment.

Actuarial Assumptions: 31st March 2022

Method Of Valuation : Project Unit Credit Method

Discount Rate : 7.18%

Salary Escalation Rate: 5.50%

Retirement Age: 60 Years

Withdrawal Rate: 3% at younger ages upto 30 years, From age 31 to 44 itis 2% and reducing
upto 1% at older age from 44 years according to graduated scale.

Mortality Rate India Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)

Sensitivity analysis:

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same method (projected unit credit method) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit
obligation recognised within the statement of financial position.

Note 13 : Financial Liabilities

13.1  Other Financial Liabilities INR in Lakhs
mm_ As at 31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021
Payable to employees 22.53 31.77
ii) Expenses Payable 16.09 93.85
Closing Balance 38.62 125.63

Note 14 : Other Current Liabilities

| S.No. |Particularsk | Asat31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021

i) Duties & Taxes Payable 49.10 39.60
iii) Advance against service 8.90 8.90
Closing Balance 58.00 48.50
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Note 15 : Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

i)
i)
i)

iv)

Advisory Service Fee from:
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INR in Lakhs

Syndication - 5.33
Consultancy 614.15 380.88
IIFC UK 583.94 581.01
Government Grant - 20.76
Closing Balance 1,198.09 987.99

Note 16 : Other Income

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

U]
i)
i)
i)
(1

)

)

Non Related and recurring

Interest Income On Fixed Deposits
Interest income on IT refund
Unwinding interest on employee loan
Related and recurring
Reimbursement of expenses
Related and non-recurring
Gain/(Loss) on account of Foreign exchange Fluctuation
Non Related and non-recurring
Notice Pay Recovery

Closing Balance

Note 17 : Manpower Benefit Expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
Vi)
vii)

Salaries and Wages
Consultants Fee

Sub consultants fee
Contribution to Retiral Benefits
Staff Welfare Expenses
Outsourced Staff cost
Amortisation of staff cost

110.95 106.55
- 0.39

3.14 2.75
0.52 -
2.15 3.50
1.45 =
118.20 113.19

Closing Balance

363.02 397.76
155.28 122.54
6.40 19.18
42.84 43.00

- 11.66

55.93 43.55
0.91 0.90
624.39 638.59

Note 18 : Other Expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

i)
i)

ii)
v)
)
i)
ii)

viii)

< < < e

Auditor Remuneration

Rent

Pantry, Parking & Office Maintenance
Travelling Expenses

Legal & Professional Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Printing & Stationery

Computer Running & Maintenance

0.43
80.37
11.15
24.40

8.15

0.28

2.30

2.74

0.32
73.24
7.29
4.14
7.05
0.35
0.68
2.96
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Note 18 : Other Expenses (Contd.) INR in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended

E N e
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 1.65 0.88
x) Repairs & Maintenance Others 0.11 0.50
Xii) Bad Debts - -
Xi) Communication Expenses 3.07 3.36
XV) Administrative & Other Expenses 35.18 21.49
Closing Balance 169.83 122.25

Note 18.1 Details of payments to Auditor

Pavment to Auditors For the year ended For the year ended
y 31st March 2022 31st March 2021

As Auditor:

Statutory Audit 0.22 0.22
Tax Audit 0.11 -
Limited Review 0.10 0.10
Total 0.43 0.32

Note 19 : Current Tax

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Current Income Tax
Current Income Tax charge 160.63 96.75

Adjustments in respect of current income
tax of previous year

Deferred Tax

Relating to origination and reversal of (19.79) (10.86)
temporary differences
Closing Balance 140.84 85.89

Note 20 : Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

20.1 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans 2.53 (18.62)
Income Tax relating to ltems that will not (0.64) 4.69
be reclassified to profit and loss

Closing Balance 1.89 (13.93)

20.2 Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Net Loss/gain on Remeasurement of (0.64)
Defined benefit plans
Closing Balance (0.64) 4.69




(ke %)

20b g 2plRLD | %GE | %9GTT %007LT | Riojlely Uoh birle | ki Bl bib ¢ Lo koy b ety |
2/b bk bRk | %07 | %bL'OT %0T'TZ Uoh blajlpk) @@@Mﬁ% % - %w m&ﬂ 0l
24b  abllep2 | %pE | %GYET %YETE| bMOL B bRIbR | k2 BB b @ pe| o E%Mm 6
18 Tk | %7- €60 250 Uoh Blaple | paoh p bRlbh Vmwhwwﬂmbwm 8

2 1§k B Ahle 3o b 2k T B Mhite by |  bRE 29)d 2k %m%ww%ﬁﬁmw L
2 b abliep2 (%82 |99 g6'g| i Male pBYe| W@&MEMW Em,mw wﬂw_vm wﬁmm 9
2 13k Pped Bl Blh $ lbhd dlikb (20 T 1R bhle bMOly B bRlbR AM_WMMMMV quwm S
24b  abllep2 | %9e | %EEET WITET |\, E%@%WW@% bl BB 2 @ po| EUWWV% v
2 1k ok 3o 3 lphoe ol gk T bl e WWEWEEM :
2 3k oo B 2h lphe olen (3 T bk e 1% E%s%w%wm .
Bb b luin BbIR | %Zy | 2T GZ-0T |  IRJbkd Llkpb Rjp2 blpR | pe EEM_M !

Indd[pahy AR

® Lpbrlh @Rl B ST k kPbylh 120 Plk LE 2202 plb LE

DihEie kb 1RD 1» kb Raby

bihkie 1B 1T 24

N
H

B2+ dh Uadbb] RIPR] AR] ® kb Diikh | 220Z plh LE

IR\

' arfife Ruld 2021—22



N
o
o
o
o
N
L
L
S
(=3
)
-2
(1]
=
c
[~
<

JOAOUIN] U] 9SB3IOU 9 99c 700" pokodwi3 sexe} (% un)
Lt ! #SE #9GCL %00°LT |eyde) agelony Jare s1j0id 19N 1USWI1SOAUI UO UIN1ay "
soxe) pue 1salou 9% Ul) paAojdwa
JanouINn| Ul esealou| %9¢C %YL 9T %0T'TC | Ppahojdw3 [eude) Eoupwm_ ww:_Smm“ _mwmmov ,_wo E_Bom (0]
Janouin] Ul esealou| %E %GY'EC %YETE suoneiado SXEL (9% u1) onesoidioN | 6
' W0l danuanay Jaye sljoid 18N v ’
suonelado sawl ul) onel
a|qeol|ddy 10N %T- €60 zS0 |leyde) BuiMIom WOl ONUSASY P >8m3 el %vo 1N 8
) sa|geled saseyaind (sawn ul) oneu
saiqeded spes ou se * 91qeol|ddy 10N apeJ| a3elony 1UpaJo 18N | Jenouuny sejqeled apel| L
oroUINt Ul 5SB8I0U . ) ) SO|(eAIDODY Jsuonetado woly | (sawiy ul) onel Jaaouiny
Ll | #8C 9Y S6°S apel] a3eldoNy | @nusAal 1PaLd 19N, S9|qBeAIDoaY apel] 9
suonelado sowln ul
Auedw o2 ayy Aq pjay Aio1uaaul ou se ‘ gjqealjddy 10N K101UBAU| BRIy wouy m%co>om onel Jenouin) MCSC.ME“ S
JaAouUIN] Ul 8SBaIoU| %9E %EEET %TT'ST S Bc_oc\M“”M SoXE (% un 4
H 0 0 () ‘
o3elony Jayje sujoid 19N | oney Ainb3 uo uwinlay
92IAJBS 109p 10} (sewn u1) oney
> ‘
uedwod ay] Uo 1gap ou se ‘a|qedljddy 10N 92IAJIBS 1997 oiqeliene sSuies | sSelon0n 00IMBS 1G0q c
sowl|
Auedw o9 ay1 uo 1gap ou se ‘g|qealjddy 10N Ainb3g 199 |e1oL ul) oney b_:cmA_-Eom Z
sysodaQ paxl Ul 8sealou] %t cc’L GZ'0T | senliqelyiuaiing S19SSY a4INY | (Sdwiy ul) oiley auny | T

Jeaf snoinaid ay) 0 pasedwod

se %Gg ueyj alow Aqopelayy  agueyy  TZOZ YdIeN TE

uj agueyd Joj uonjeue|dxg

\\

¢c0C Y 1eNl 1€

lojeujwouaq

d3LIAIT S193rodd 19411

lojesawinp

\\

onjey ay} jo swen

sofijes SunUNoIIY : TZ 90N

€C0C HOYVIN 1STE€ NO A3AdN3 JV3A 3HL 404 SINIINFLLVLS TVIONVNI4 NO S310N




' arfife Ruld 2021—22

31 A1d 2022 &l g9 98 & fog fa<iia faavon wr fewfor
fewofi—22: faQefl ga1 4 =F: 31.03.2022 &I [

fewofi—23: ssv® QAATG— 31.03.2022 &I I[H

fewofi—24: 31.03.2022 &I YSil yfaagdr

fewofi—25: gyegara uisfie

Ay HHART AT

T TG W 54.00 54.00
AR T=md a4 N N
el 54.00 54.00

fewofi—26: Sfaa o AU
(i) foflar fa<ha 9=

faa=or TG THAIE
figa anfang

fa<ira aREufman

HHATRAT BT FoT 46.62 43.45
G BN . : 158.87 - - 243.82
el Ud Thal HAGA - - 368.14 - - 140.56
qPbal Td FAHal WEHG D - - 1,918.22 : - 1,677.32
AT 6 Y

=g fo<irg uReufrn 52.37 62.26
g fa<iia aRgula - . 2,544.22 - - 2,167.41
fa<frar <garg

B’%TN = - - - - =
R T 38.62 128.71
$d fa<ia <gag - - 38.62 - 5 128.71

(ii) fa<fra uREuRTal vad SaaRn &1 Sfad Jeu 59 FoT aYell artd uR 3&T SIrdar @

31 9r1d 2022 31 9rd 2021
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

fa<ha aReufran

HHATRAT DI F0T 46.62 38.62 43.45 35.43
=1 foRi uR™afR 52.37 52.37 62.26 62.26
o uREuRmEAT 98.99 90.99 105.71 97.69
fo=fra <amg

3 fa<fa <rarg 38.62 38.62 128.71 128.71

38.62 38.62 128.71 128.71
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March 2022
Note 22 : Expenditure in Foreign currency- NIL as on 31.03.2022
Note 23 : Contingent Liabilities- NIL as on 31.03.2022

Note 24 : Capital Commitment- NIL as on 31.03.2022

Note 25 : Managerial Remuneration INR in Lakhs
Particulars | Denominator 31 March 2021

Short Term Employee Benefits

Salary and allowances 54.00 54.00
Post employment benefits Nil Nil
Total 54.00 54.00

Note 26 : Fair Value Measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category

31 March 2021

EVTPL FVTOCI Amortised EVTPL Sy Amortised
Cost Cost

Financial Assets

Loans to Employees 46.62 43.45
Trade Receivables - - 158.87 - - 243.82
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 368.14 - - 140.56
Bank Balances other than - - 1,918.22 - - 1,677.32
Cash and Cash equivalent

Other Financial Assets 52.37 62.26
Total Financial Assets - - 2,544.22 - - 2,167.41

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - - - - - -
Trade Payables - - - - - -
Other financial liabilities 38.62 128.71

Total Financial Liabilities - - 38.62 - - 128.71

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost:

31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial Assets

Loans to Employees 46.62 38.62 43.45 35.43
Other Financial Assets 52.37 52.37 62.26 62.26
Total Assets 98.99 90.99 105.71 97.69

Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 38.62 38.62 128.71 128.71
38.62 38.62 128.71 128.71
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The carrying amounts of Trade Receivables, Cash and cash equivalents, Bank Balances, other financial
assets and other financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their Fair values, due to their short
term nature.

The Fair value for loans were calculated based on cash flows discounted using the current lending rate. They
are classified as Level 3 Fair Values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable input
including counterparty credit risk.

Fair Value hierarchy

Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilties

Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilty,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived form prices)

Level 3- Inputs for the assets or liabilties that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and liabilties measured
at amortised cost:-

As at 31-03-2022

Particuars | levell | leveiz | loveld | Total |

Financial Assets

Financial assets at
Amortised Cost

Loans to Employees - - 38.62 38.62
38.62 38.62

As at 31-03-2021

Partculars | Leveli | Level2 | level3d | Total |

Financial Assets

Financial assets at
Amortised Cost

Loans to Employees - - 35.43 35.43
35.43 35.43

Note 27 : Earnings Per Share

[Particularsk | Asat31stMarch2022 |  As at 31st Mar 2021

Basic EPS

From continuing Operations 7.90 4.88
From discontinuing Operations = =
Diluted EPS

From continuing Operations 7.90 4.88

From discontinuing Operations
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27.1 Basic Earning Per Share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic earning per share:-

As at 31st March

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company:

From continuing Operations 373.59 245.64
From discontinuing Operations = =
Earnings used in calculation of Basic EPS 373.59 245.64
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose 47.50 47.50

of basic earnings per share

27.2 Diluted Earning Per Share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of diluted earning per share:-

Particulas | Asat31stMarch2022 | Asat 31st Mar 2021

Profit attributable to equity holders of the

company:
From continuing Operations 373.59 245.64
From discontinuing Operations = -
Earnings used in calculation of Diluted EPS 373.59 245.64
Weighted average number of shares for the 47.50 47.50

purpose of diluted earnings per share

Note 28. Related Party disclosures as required by Ind-AS 24 “Related party Disclosure”

28.1 Key Management Personnel

Shri P.R.Jaishankar -Chairman & Director

Shri Palash Srivastava - Director & Deputy Chief Executive Officer
28.2 Enterprises in which Directors interest exist- NIL

28.3 Holding Company: Indian Infrastructure Finance Company Limited

Associate Concern: IIFCL Asset Management Company Limited
[IFC (UK) Limited
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28.4 Disclosure of transactions with related parties

INR in Lakhs

Transactions Outstanding Amount

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

1. India Infrastructure Finance
Company Limited

Reimbursements: 1777 51.92
Rent: 80.37 73.24

Pantry, Parking &  Office 11.15 16.22

Maintenance

Reimbursement of salary of 134.03 -

deputed employees (Receivable)

Advisory Fee 0.95 - - -
Total 226.50 89.46 7.77 51.92
2. lIFC(UK) Limited

Advisory Fee 583.94 581.01 6.38 145.94
Other Reimbursements 0.15 0.22

Total 584.09 581.24 6.38 145.94
3 Shri Palash Srivastava

Remuneration 54.00 54.00 - 4.50

Note 29. Additional regulatory information required by Schedule Ill of Companies Act, 2013

i) The Company has not been declared as a Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

ii) The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of
the Companies Act,2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year.

iii) Details of Benami property: No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Group for
holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and the rules made thereunder.

iv) No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.

V) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements: The Company has not entered into any scheme of
arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

Vi) Undisclosed income: There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or
previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in
the books of account.

vii) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency: The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency
or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

viii)  Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property: The Company has not revalued its property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or
previous year.

iX) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
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Note 30. Approval of financial statement

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25.05.2022

As per Our Report on even Date Annexed
FOR CHANDER PARKASH & CO. For and on behalf of

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS the Board of Directors of IIFCL Projects Limited
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Dishant Khatter Palash Srivastava P R Jaishankar

(Partner) (Director & Deputy CEO) (Director)

M.No. 540382 (DIN : 02007911) (DIN : 6711526)

FRN 010770N
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 25.05.2022
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NOTE 1

1. Corporate Information:

IIFCL Projects Limited is a Limited Company incorporated on 14 February 2012. It is classified as Union
Govt company and is registered at Registrar of Companies, Delhi. Its authorized share capital is Rs.
100,000,000 and its paid up capital is Rs. 47,500,000. IIFCL Projects Ltd. (IPL), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited (IIFCL), a Government of India Enterprise.
IIFCL, a premier infrastructure financing institution in India, has promoted IPL as a dedicated project
advisory company involved in the areas of project appraisal, syndication, transaction advisory, and
infrastructure consultancy services. The company caters to the demand for advisory services to
projects across the spectrum of infrastructure sector including roads, highways, ports, airports, power
including renewable, tourism, urban infrastructure like water supply & sewerage projects, solid waste
management etc.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
Compliance with IND AS

The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis for Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual
basis, except for the following items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind-
AS.

i. Defined benefit Plan and other long-term employee benefits measured at fair value

ii. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with Ind AS, requires management. to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
financial statements and the reported amount of income and expenses. Examples of such estimates
include estimates of future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans and estimated useful
life of property, plant and equipment actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Future results could differ
due to changes in these estimates and difference between the actual result and the estimates are
recognized in the period in which the results are known /materialize.

All financial information presented in Indian rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs upto
2 decimal places except where otherwise stated.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow statement is reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
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receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company
are segregated based on the available information.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment loss, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

For transition to IND-AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its tangibles
and intangibles assets recognized as on April 1, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to
the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Depreciation methods
Tangible Assets
Depreciation of Tangible fixed assets is provided using the the manner provided in Schedule Il of the

Companies Act, 2013 following written down value method. Depreciation on individual assets having
cost Rs. 5000/- or less is charged at 100% to the statement of profit and loss

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives on a written down value
basis from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of acquired softwares are
finite (3 years). Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Foreign Currency translation
(I) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The financial statements
are prepared in Indian rupee (INR) which is functional and presentation currency of the entity.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
date of transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from such transactions and from the
translation-,of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognized in profit or loss.
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Current versus Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non- current
classification.

An assets is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
e |tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or There is no unconditional
right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for running the business
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of current/ non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Impairment of non-financial assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value and
impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss in the year in which an asset is identified
as impaired. At each reporting date company assesses the estimate amount of impairment loss. The
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimate of recoverable amount and such losses either no longer exists or has decreased. Reversal of
impaired loss, if any, shall be recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. However, no such loss has
been recognized during the year.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost net
of any expected credit losses, if any.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, imprest with postal authorities and cheques
/ drafts / pay order in hand. The company considers cash equivalents as all short term balances (with
an original maturity of three month or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.
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Financial Instrument

i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Instruments are recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments.

ii) Subsequent measurement
Financial Assets are classified in following three categories:
¢ Amortised Cost:

A financial instrument shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (EIR) method less
impairment if any. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and
loss.

In IIFCL projects limited, employee loans and security deposits are being recorded at amortised
cost, as the above mentioned conditions are fulfilled for both the cases.

* Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income:

A Financial instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets and

b) The contarctual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payables of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are initially recognised and subsequently
measured at fair value. Movements in the carrying amount are recorded through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses.

¢ Fair value through Profit and loss account:

A Financial instrument is classified as at the FVTPL if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by selling the financial assets, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

Further, FVTPL is a residual category for financial Assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. If doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency. The company has not designated any financial asset as at FVTPL.
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Financial liabilities are classified in following categories:
* Amortised Cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables are initially recognized at
fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost.

¢ Fair Value Through Profit and loss.

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Derecoghnition of Financial instrument

¢ Financial Asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it
transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks s and rewards of the ownership of the asset.

¢ Financial Liabilit

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Fair Value Measurement

Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. The company
uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.

Non-current Assets (or disposal groups) held for Sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount
is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The
sale is considergd. highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale
in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn and sale is expected within one year
from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held
for sale are presented separately in the statement of financial position.
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If the criteria stated by IND AS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations" are no
longer met, the disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to
be classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was
classified as held for sale, adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognised had that asset
not been classified as held for sale, and (ii) its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group
ceases to be classified as held for sale.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for services provided to the company prior to the end of Financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months after the reporting period. They are
recognized initially at their fair value.

Provisions

The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present legal and constructive obligation as result
of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Contingent Liability and Contingent Asset

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or
a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

Contingent assets is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed are
net of returns, rebates, value added taxes and amount collected on behalf of third parties.

The revenue is recognized when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for activities as
described below. The basis of its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

* Advisory Service Fees

Revenue from advisory service (syndication and consultancy) is booked on an accrual basis.

¢ Interest Income

Revenue from Interest Income from Fixed Deposits with Bank are recognized using the time proportion
method, based on the rates implicit in the transaction.

¢ Interest Income on Tax Refund

Interest Income on Tax Refund is accounted based on the assessment orders passed, if any.
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Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at the their fair value when there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the entity will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grant relating to revenue income are deferred and revenue is recognized in profit or loss
based on the actual services provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total
services to be provided.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards are not transferred to the entity as lessee
are classified as operating lease. Payments made under operating leases (net of incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless
the payments are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation trsccimpensate for
the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. However, substance over form the entity is paying
lease rentals as reimbursement of expenses to it's parent company which is then paying it to lessor.

Employee Benefits

¢ Short Term Obligations

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and leave encashment etc. are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

e Other Long Term Employee Benefits Obligations

The liabilities for Long-term employee benefits not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.
The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in Profit or loss under
Other comprehensive income.

Income Tax

¢ Current Income Tax

a) Taxes including current income-tax are computed using the applicable tax rates and tax laws.

b) The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and
generates taxable income.

c) Current income tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities Liability for additional
taxes, if any, is provided / paid as and when assessments are completed.

d) Current tax related to OCI Item are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl).
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¢ Deferred Income Tax

a) Deferred income tax is recognized using balance sheet approach.

b) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences which is
computed using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

c) Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

d) The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
e) Deferred tax related to OCI Item are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Earning Per Share

e Basic Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
* Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
* By the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the financial year.

¢ Diluted Earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

¢ The afterincome tax effect of interest and other financial costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Impact of COVID-19

The Company has taken into accountall the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these financial
statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity and going concern assumption,
recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenue recognition owing to
changes in cost budgets of fixed price contracts, impact on leases and impact on effectiveness of its
hedges. The Company has carried out this assessment based on available internal and external sources
of information upto the date of approval of these financial statements and believes that the impact of
COVID-19 is not material to these financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount of
its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the
date of approval of these financial statements owing to the nature and duration of COVID-19.

FOR CHANDER PARKASH & CO. For and on behalf of

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS the Board of Directors of IIFCL Projects Limited
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Dishant Khatter Palash Srivastava P R Jaishankar
(Partner) (Director & Deputy CEO) (Director)

M.No. 540382 (DIN : 02007911) (DIN : 6711526)

FRN 010770N
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 25.05.2022
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFCL PROJECTS LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The preparation of financial statements of IIFCL Projects Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their
Audit Report dated 25 May 2022.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have decided not to conduct the supplementary
audit of the financial statements of IIFCL Projects Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 under section
143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-

(S. Ahlladini Panda)
Principal Director of Audit,
Industry & Corporate Affairs,
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Date: 24.08.2022
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